# **Field Local Schools**



2023-2024

**Field High School** 2900 St. Rt. 43 Mogadore, OH 44260 330-673-9591 Field Middle School 1379 Saxe Rd. Mogadore, OH 44260 330-673-4176

Administrative Office 2900 St. Rt. 43 Mogadore, OH 44260 330-673-2659

Brimfield Elementary School 4170 St. Rt. 43 Kent, OH 44240 330-673-8581 Suffield Elementary School 1128 Waterloo Rd. Mogadore, OH 44260 330-552-5252

www.fieldlocalschools.org

# THIS STUDENT HANDBOOK/AGENDA BELONGS TO:

NAME	
ADDRESS	
CITY	ZIP CODE
PHONE	

#### **Table of Contents**

### Section I: Introduction 4

- 4 Equal Education Opportunity
- 4 Foreword
- 4 Individuals with Disabilities
- 4 Mission Statement
- 4 Remote Learning
- 4 Responsibilities
- 4 The Safer Ohio School Tip Line
- 4 Well-Being

# Section II: General Information 5-10

- 10 Advertising Outside Activities
- 5 Bell Schedules
- 6 Electronic Devices
- 7 Emergency Closings, Delays, or Emergency Dismissal
- 7 Emergency Drills
- 10 Employment
- 7 Enrolling in the School
- 5 Fees and Fines
- 7 Field Trips
- 7 Fundraising
- 5-6 Lockers
- 6 Meal Service
- 8-10 Notification of Rights and Designation of Directory Information Under FERPA for Elementary and Secondary Schools
- 6 Parking Privilege
- 8-10 Records
- 5 Schedule Change Regulations
- 5 Scheduling and Assignment
- 6 Study Hall Guidelines
- 6 Use of School Equipment and Facilities
- 6 Use of Telephones
- 6 Use of the Library
- 6 Valuables/Lost and Found
- 10 Video and Audio Surveillance
- 5 Visitors
- 8 Withdrawal/Transfer from School

# Section III: Academic Information 10-14

- 13 Academic Recognition Awards
- 12 Assessments and State-Mandated Tests
- 13 Athletic Awards
- 13 College Credit Plus
- 13 Educational Options
- 10-11 Grades
- 11 Grade Point Average
- 11 Grading Policy
- 11 Grading Scale
- 14 Graduation Honors Guidelines
- 12 Graduation Requirements
- 10 Home/School Communications
- 12 Honors Diploma
- 11 High School Exams
- 14 Portage County Teens of the Month
- 11-12 Promotion, Acceleration and Retention
- 13 Recognition of Student Achievement
- 11 Semester, Year and Grade Point Average
- 13-14 Special Awards

### Section IV: Attendance 14-17

- 15 Absences and Excuses
- 14 Attendance Accounting/Missing Children
- 14-15 Attendance Procedures
- 15 Authorized Absences
- 15 Compulsory School Attendance
- 17 Detentions of Students Before/After School
- 16 Early Dismissal
- 16-17 Excessive and Habitual Absenteeism
- 16 Makeup of Tests and Other School Work
- 16 Tardiness
- 15 Unauthorized Absence

# 16 Vacations During the School Year

# Section V: Student Activities 17-20

- 20 Attendance at School Events
- 19-20 Athletics
- 20 Non School Sponsored Clubs and Activities
- 17-18 School Sponsored Clubs and Activities

### Section VI: Medical Information 20-21

- 21 Communicable Diseases
- 20 Emergency Medical Authorization
- 20 Immunizations
- 20 Injury and Illness
- 20-21 Use of Medications (Prescribed/Non-Prescribed)

# Section VII: Transportation 21-22

- 21-22 Bus Conduct
- 21 Bus Transportation to School
- 21 Homelessness
- 22 Penalties for Infractions
- 22 Restriction of Bus Riding/Transportation Privileges
- Video and Audio Surveillance on School Transportation

# Section VIII: Computer Technology, Networks and Other Electronic Devices 22-23

- 23 Cell Phones and Other Personal Electronic Devices
- 22-23 Email, Internet, and Computer Use

# Section IX: Code of Conduct 23-28

- 24 Care of Property
- 26-28 Code of Student Conduct
- 24 Conduct (Zero Tolerance)
- 25 Discipline
- 26 Discipline of Students with Disabilities
- 24 Dressing and Grooming
- 24 Dress Code
- 26 Due Process Rights
- 23 Expected Behaviors
- 23 Harassment (Bullying)
- 26 Rights of Expression
- 26 Search and Seizure

# Section X: Writing Guidelines 28-29

- 28 MLA Standards
- 28 Plagiarism
- 29 Final Note

### **FOREWORD**

This student handbook was developed to answer many of the commonly asked questions that you and your parents may have during the school year. Because this handbook contains information about student rights and responsibilities, each student is responsible for knowing its contents. Please take time to become familiar with its contents. It is a valuable resource for both you and your parents. This Handbook replaces all prior handbooks and other written material on the same subjects. This Handbook does not create a contract between the school and the student and/or parent but only reflects the current status of the Board's policies and the School's rules. If any of the policies or administrative guidelines referenced herein are revised, the language in the most current policy or administrative guideline prevails. While every effort is made to ensure the accuracy of the information provided, the school reserves the right to make changes at any time without prior notice. Copies of current Board Policies and administrative guidelines are available on the District's website.

### **MISSION STATEMENT**

The professional staff of Field Local Schools believes that education, above all, is learning. Therefore, the prime mission of the school is to help students gain the skills that will enable them to become informed, self-directed learners who will be productive members of society and ultimately contribute in a positive manner to its future.

# **EQUAL EDUCATION OPPORTUNITY**

This District provides an equal educational opportunity for all students. Any person who believes that the school or any staff person has discriminated against a student based on race, color, creed, disability, religion, gender, ancestry, or national origin, has the right to file a complaint. Complaints and/or questions should be directed to the District's compliance officer. Complaints will be investigated, and a response provided to the person filing the complaint in a timely manner. The compliance officer can provide additional information concerning equal access to educational opportunities. Under no circumstances will the District threaten or retaliate against anyone who raises a complaint.

The following person has been designated to handle inquiries regarding non-discrimination policies:

Field Local Schools Superintendent 2900 State Route 43 Field Administration Office 330-673-2659

For further information on notice of non-discrimination, visit http://wdcrobcolp01.ed.gov/CFAPPS/OCR/contactus.cfm for the address and phone number of the office that serves your area, or call 1-800-421-3481.

### **INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES**

The Americans with Disabilities Act (A.D.A.) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act provide that no individual will be discriminated against on the basis of a disability. This protection applies both to the student and to all individuals who have access to the District's programs and facilities.

A student can access special education services through the proper evaluation and placement procedure. Parent involvement in this procedure is required. More importantly, the school wants the parent to be an active participant. To inquire about the procedure or programs, a parent should contact the Director of Special Services at (330) 673-2659.

## **RESPONSIBILITIES**

The school's rules and procedures are designed to allow students to be educated in a safe and orderly environment. All students are expected to follow staff members' directions and obey all school rules.

The staff expects students to come to school prepared to learn. It is the student's responsibility to arrive on time and to participate in the educational program. If, for some reason, this is not possible, the student should seek help from the school counselor or school principal.

#### **WELL-BEING**

School safety is the responsibility of both students and staff. Field Local School District has in place an Emergency and Crisis Response Plan which addresses all emergency situations. The plan is provided to all staff members and is available in each room. If a student is aware of any dangerous situation or accident, he/she must notify a staff member immediately.

State law requires that all students have an emergency medical authorization completed, signed by a parent or guardian, and on file in the school office. Students with specific health care needs should alert the school regarding those needs, in writing, with proper documentation by a physician. This should be given to the school office for the school nurse to review.

# THE SAFER OHIO SCHOOLS TIP LINE

The Ohio School Safety Center maintains the Safer Ohio School Tip line (844-SAFEROH) with 24/7 operations (call of text) at no cost to schools and communities. Every tip can remain anonymous.

#### REMOTE LEARNING

Should a remote learning situation exist, students will be held to the same high standards of behavior that would be expected in a traditional learning environment. Failure to adhere to the expectations of the Field Local School's Code of Conduct will result in disciplinary action.

# **SCHEDULING AND ASSIGNMENT**

Schedules are provided to each student at the beginning of the school year or upon enrolling. The schedule is based upon the student's needs and available class space. Any changes in a student's schedule should be handled through the guidance office. It is important to note that some courses requested by the student may be denied because of available space or the need to take prerequisites. Students are expected to follow their schedules. Any variation should be approved with a schedule change.

### **BELL SCHEDULES**

HIGH SCHO	OL	MIDDLE SCH	00L	
Warning Bell 1 <sup>st</sup> period 2 <sup>nd</sup> period 3 <sup>rd</sup> period	7:50 a.m. 7:55 - 8:43 8:47 - 9:29 9:33 - 10:15	Warning Bell Homeroom 1 <sup>st</sup> period 2 <sup>nd</sup> period	7:45 a.m. 7:55 - 8:01 8:01 - 8:38 8:40 - 9:20	
4 <sup>th</sup> period 5 <sup>th</sup> period 6 <sup>th</sup> period <b>Falcon Period</b>	10:19 - 11:01 11:05 - 11:47 11:51 - 12:33 <b>12:37 - 1:13</b>	Falcon Period 3 <sup>rd</sup> period 4 <sup>th</sup> period	9:22 - 9:52 9:55 - 10:35 10:37 - 11:07 10:37 - 11.17	grade 6 grade 7/8
7 <sup>th</sup> period 8 <sup>th</sup> period	1:17 - 1:59 2:03 - 2:45	5 <sup>th</sup> period	11:10 - 11:50 11:20 - 11:50 11:20 - 12:00	grade 6 grade 7 grade 8
		6 <sup>th</sup> period	11:55 - 12:35 12:04 - 12:36	grade 6/7 grade 8
		7 <sup>th</sup> period 8 <sup>th</sup> period	12:40 - 1:20 1:23 - 2:03	-
		9 <sup>th</sup> period	2:05 - 2:43 2:05 - 2:45	grade 6/7 grade 8

# **SCHEDULING CHANGE REGULATIONS**

Requests for schedule changes without penalty will be considered as follows:

Acceptable reasons for schedule changes:

- Computer error
- To meet graduation requirements
- To adjust for health conditions (health care provider's note required)
- To adjust for summer school credit
- To replace a study hall (same period) with a class
- To reduce overload (minimum 5 credits required: no course substitutions)
- Misplacement (principal's or assistant principal's approval required)

All requests for schedule changes must be submitted in writing to the guidance offices. High school and middle school students must provide a written request within 3 school days from the beginning of the course. If a course is dropped from a student's schedule as a result of disciplinary action and/or poor attendance, a study hall may be assigned. Replacement courses may not be added until the next semester. Schedule changes that do not comply with the standards listed above will be subject to academic penalty (withdrawal/failure).

### **VISITORS**

Visitors, especially parents, are welcome at the school. To properly monitor the safety of students and staff, each visitor must report to the office upon entering the school to sign in and obtain a pass. Any visitor found in the building without signing in will be reported to the principal. If a person wishes to confer with a member of the staff, he/she should call for an appointment prior to coming to the school in order to prevent any inconvenience. Students may not bring visitors to school without first obtaining written permission from the principal.

# **FEES AND FINES**

Field Local Schools charge specific fees for certain activities and courses. This includes a fee for participation in extracurricular activities. Such fees or charges are determined by the cost of materials, freight/handling, and/or damage to school property. The school and staff do not make a profit. A listing of fees and charges for the current school year is available in the school office. Fees may be waived where there is financial hardship. Contact the building principal for information regarding the waiving of fees.

Students using school property and equipment can be fined for excessive wear and abuse. Late fines can be avoided when students return borrowed materials promptly. Failure to pay fines, fees, or charges may result in the withholding of one's diploma.

### **LOCKERS**

The lockers supplied by the Board and used by the students are the property of the Board. Therefore, the lockers and the contents of all lockers are subject to random search at any time without regard to whether there is a reasonable suspicion that any locker or its contents contains evidence of a violation of a criminal statute or a school rule.

#### **Locker Guidelines**

- Nothing is permitted on the outside of lockers unless approved by an administrator.
- Permanent marking is not permitted inside lockers.
- Students are responsible for removing decorations at the end of the school year.
- Offensive materials are not permitted.
- Lockers must remain locked.

### STUDY HALL GUIDELINES

- Study hall is to be used for its intended purpose: to study.
- Come prepared to work with all necessary materials.
- Be in the study hall prior to the tardy bell.
- No talking without permission from the study hall monitor.
- Remain in your assigned seat.
- Electronic games, games, cards, food, and drink are not permitted unless approved by the monitor.
- Students going to another room must first present an approved pass to the study hall monitor.

# **ELECTRONIC DEVICES**

The school supplies most electronic equipment necessary in school. Students should not bring non-educational electronic equipment to school. Students using any of these devices during school hours without the consent of the principal or his/her designee will be subject to confiscation and disciplinary action.

#### VALUABLES/LOST AND FOUND

Students are encouraged not to bring items of value to school. Items such as jewelry, expensive clothing, electronic equipment, and the like should be left at home. The school is not responsible for their safekeeping and will not be liable for any loss or damage to personal valuables. Check for lost and found locations with each school office. Periodically, unclaimed items will be given to charity.

### **USE OF SCHOOL EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES**

Students must receive the permission of the teacher before using any equipment or materials in the classroom and the permission of the principal to use any other school equipment or facility. Students will be held responsible for the proper use and safekeeping of any equipment or facility they are allowed to use.

### **USE OF TELEPHONES**

Office telephones are not to be used for personal calls. Parents calling for students will be asked to leave a message to be delivered to the student unless it is an emergency situation. The student will be able to return the call when he/she receives the message.

Students are not to use personal telephones to call parents to receive permission to leave school. Office personnel will initiate all calls on behalf of a student seeking permission to leave school.

Please refer to individual buildings for guidelines and procedures regarding the use of cell phones and other electronic devices.

# **USE OF THE LIBRARY**

The library is available to students throughout the school day. Passes may be obtained from a student's teacher or from the librarian. Books may be checked out for a period of two weeks. To check out any other materials, contact the librarian. Materials checked out of the library must be returned according to the building library policy.

# **PARKING PRIVILEGE**

Students in grades 10 -12 are permitted to drive to school and park in the school parking lot provided they have purchased a parking permit and received permission from the administration. Each permit is assigned to a designated area. If the student accumulates excessive tardiness or parking lot violations, he/she may lose the parking privilege.

1st offense - warning

2<sup>nd</sup> offense - \$10 ticket and after-school detention

3<sup>rd</sup> offense - \$10 ticket and Friday school detention

4th offense - \$10 ticket, Friday school detention, and 30-day parking suspension

5th offense - \$10 ticket and 60-day parking suspension/potential loss of driving privileges

# **MEAL SERVICE**

The District participates in the National School Breakfast and Lunch Program and makes meals available to students. Regular breakfast, lunch and a la carte items are available. Students may also bring their own lunches to school to be eaten in the school's cafeteria. All students are required to eat lunch in the cafeteria, unless given permission by the principal. For safety and sanitation purposes, all drink containers are required to have a screw on lid if consumed outside the cafeteria.

The application for the free and reduced-priced meal program is available on the District's website under Parents/Students.

#### **EMERGENCY DRILLS**

The District complies with all fire safety laws and will conduct fire and safety (ALICE) drills in accordance with state law. Specific instructions on how to proceed will be provided to the students. The staff will oversee the safe, prompt, and orderly evacuation of the building. Tornado drills will be conducted during the tornado season using the procedures prescribed by the state.

#### **FIELD TRIPS**

Field trips are academic activities that are held off school grounds. In addition, there are also other trips that are part of the school's co-curricular and extracurricular program. Medications normally administered at school will be administered while on field trips. The student code of conduct applies to all field trips. Attendance rules apply to all trips. While the District encourages the student's participation in trips, alternative assignments will be provided for any student whose parent does not give permission to attend. Students who violate school rules may lose the privilege to go on trips. Arrangements for makeup work must be made in advance of the trip.

### EMERGENCY CLOSING, DELAYS, OR EMERGENCY DISMISSAL

If the school must be closed, the opening delayed, or students dismissed early because of inclement weather, emergency situations, or other conditions, the school will use the parent notification system and will notify the following radio and television stations:

Television
WKYC-Channel 3 (wkyc.com)
WEWS-Channel 5 (newsnet5.com)
WJW-Channel 8 (fox8.com)
WOIO-Channel 19 (cleveland19.com)

Radio WNIR-100FM (wnir.com)

# **FUNDRAISING**

Students participating in school sponsored groups and activities will be allowed to solicit funds from other students, staff members, and members of the community in accordance with school guidelines. For all fund-raising activities occurring on District premises or at a District sponsored event, or involving students or District employees, the following general rules will apply:

- 1. All fundraising activities will be approved in advance by the Superintendent or his/her designee.
- 2. No student may participate in a fundraising activity conducted by a parent group, booster club, or community organization on school property without the approval of the Superintendent or his/her designee.
- 3. Student participation in fundraising activities will be voluntary and will be approved by the Superintendent or his/her designee.
- 4. A student will not be allowed to participate in a fundraising activity for a group in which he/she is not a member without the approval of the coordinator.
- 5. Instructional time will not be used to organize or conduct a fundraising activity. Likewise, fund-raising activities will not interfere with any co-curricular or extracurricular activity.
- 6. Students involved in the fundraiser are not to interfere with students participating in other activities in order to solicit funds.
- 7. No student may participate in fundraising activities off school property without proper supervision by approved staff or other adults.

### **ENROLLING IN THE SCHOOL**

Students are required to enroll in the school district in which they live unless enrolling under the District's open enrollment policy.

Students who are new to Field Local Schools are required to enroll with their parents or legal guardians. When enrolling, the following must be provided:

- 1. An original birth certificate with a raised seal. Other documents may be substituted. See BOE policy 6.02 for a complete list.
- 2. Court papers allocating parental rights and responsibilities or custody (if applicable)
- 3. Two (2) proofs of residency
- 4. Proof of immunizations
- 5. Social Security card

Under certain circumstances, temporary enrollment may be permitted. If that is done, the parents or guardians will be told what records are needed to make the enrollment permanent.

Students enrolling from another school must have an official transcript from the previous school in order to receive credit from that school. The office staff will assist in obtaining the transcript, if not presented at the time of enrollment.

An adult student (eighteen years of age or older) may self-enroll. If he/she is residing with a parent/guardian, the adult student is encouraged to include them in the process. Adult students have the responsibilities of both student and parent.

A student who has been suspended or expelled by another public school in Ohio may be denied admission to the District's schools during the period of suspension or expulsion even if that student would otherwise be entitled to attend school in the district. Likewise, a student who has been expelled or otherwise removed for disciplinary purposes from a public school in another state and the period of expulsion or removal has not expired, may be temporarily denied admission to the District's schools. The period of expulsion or removal will last for the duration of time as prescribed by the School Board guidelines. Prior to denying admission, however, the Superintendent will offer the student an opportunity for a hearing to review the circumstances of the suspension or expulsion and any other factors the Superintendent determines to be relevant.

#### WITHDRAWAL/TRANSFER FROM SCHOOL

If a student plans to transfer to another school, the parent or guardian must notify the principal. School records will be transferred when a records request is received from the new school. No student under the age of eighteen will be allowed to withdraw from school without the written consent of his/her parents or guardians and in compliance with state law. A student who withdraws from school will be reported to the juvenile judge of the county and to the Registrar of Motor Vehicles for suspension of his/her driver's license if he/she is under the age of eighteen.

### **RECORDS**

Teachers, counselors, and administrative staff keep many student records. Student records include directory information and confidential records. Directory information can be given to any person or organization for nonprofit making purposes when requested, unless the parents of the student notify the principal in writing that they wish to restrict the release of such information.

Unless specified otherwise in these guidelines, student records will be considered to be no longer needed by this District for educational purposes when:

- A. the student graduates or receives a certificate of completion; or
- B. the student has reached his/her twenty-second (22nd) birthday.

When certain records within a student's file are considered no longer needed, the school will ensure that in the event certain records are to be destroyed, the following minimal data be permanently maintained:

- A. student's name, address, and phone number
- B. birth date
- C. classes attended and grade
- D. attendance record including building attended and/or transcript
- E. grade level completed, and year completed.

If a student is identified as a student with a disability in special education, the school will ensure:

- A. records are maintained for five (5) years after termination of special education programs, services, and/or graduation
- B. parents/adult students are notified when information is no longer needed to provide educational services and will be destroyed.

The personally identifiable information on a student with disabilities will be retained for 6 years after a student graduates or would have normally graduated. The student's last IEP and ETR will be retained permanently unless the parents/adult students request that it be destroyed as specified in these guidelines. The case manager should remind them that the records may be needed by the student or the parents for Social Security benefits or other purposes.

Confidential records contain educational and behavioral information that has restricted access based on the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and Ohio law. This information can only be released with the written consent of the parents or the adult student. The only exception is to comply with State and Federal laws that authorize the release of such information without consent.

Confidential records include test scores, psychological reports, behavioral data, disciplinary actions, and communications with family and outside service providers. The school must have the parents' written consent to obtain records from an outside professional or agency. Confidential information that is in a student's record that originates from an outside professional or agency may be released to the parent through the originator and parents should keep copies of such records for their home file. Parents may also provide the school with copies of records made by non-school professional agencies or individuals.

Students and parents have the right to review all educational records generated by the school district, request amendment to these records, insert addendum to records, and obtain copies of such records when required by law. Copying cost may be charged to the requestor. To review records, please contact the school principal, in writing, stating the records desired. The records will be collected, and an appointment will be made with the appropriate persons present to answer any questions.

Pursuant to Ohio's Student Privacy Act, O.R.C. §3319.321, the District shall not release, or permit access to, personally identifiable information, other than directory information, concerning any former adult student following such person's death, without the prior written consent of such person.

### Notification of Rights and Designation of Directory Information Under FERPA for Elementary and Secondary Schools

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents and students who are 18 years of age or older ("eligible students") certain rights with respect to the student's education records. These rights are:

1. The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days after the day the Field Local School District ("School") receives a request for access.

Parents or eligible students should submit to the school principal a written request that identifies the records they wish to inspect. The principal, or his/her designee, will make arrangements for access and notify the parent or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be inspected.

2. The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent or eligible student believes are inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the student's privacy rights under FERPA.

Parents or eligible students who wish to ask the School to amend a record should write to the school principal, clearly identify the part of the record they want changed and specify why it should be changed. If the school decides not to amend the record as requested by the parent or eligible student, the school will notify the parent or eligible student of the decision and of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the parent or eligible student when notified of the right to a hearing.

- 3. The right to provide written consent before the school discloses personally identifiable information (PII) from the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent. For a further explanation, see item 5 below.
- 4. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the School to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202

- 5. FERPA permits the disclosure of PII from students' education records, without consent of the parent or eligible student, if the disclosure meets certain conditions found in § 99.31 of the FERPA regulations. Except for disclosures to school officials, disclosures related to some judicial orders or lawfully issued subpoenas, disclosures of directory information, and disclosures to the parent or eligible student, § 99.32 of the FERPA regulations requires the school to record the disclosure. Parents and eligible students have a right to inspect and review the record of disclosures. A school may disclose PII from the education records of a student without obtaining prior written consent of the parents or the eligible student
  - To other school officials, including teachers, within the educational agency or institution whom the school has determined to have legitimate educational interests. A school official may include a volunteer or contractor outside of the school who performs an institutional service or function for which the school would otherwise use its own employees and who is under the direct control of the school with respect to the use and maintenance of PII for education records, such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist; a parent or student volunteering to serve on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee; or a parent, student, or other volunteer assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks. A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility. (§ 99.31(a)(1)).
  - To officials of another school, school system, or institution of postsecondary education where the student seeks or intends to enroll, or where the student is already enrolled if the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer, subject to the requirements of § 99.34. (§ 99.31(a)(2)).
  - To authorized representatives of the U. S. Comptroller General, the U. S. Attorney General, the U.S. Secretary of Education, or State and local educational authorities, such as the State educational agency (SEA) in the parent or eligible student's State. Disclosures under this provision may be made, subject to the requirements of § 99.35, in connection with an audit or evaluation of Federal- or State-supported education programs, or for the enforcement of or compliance with Federal legal requirements that relate to those programs. These entities may make further disclosures of PII to outside entities that are designated by them as their authorized representatives to conduct any audit, evaluation, or enforcement or compliance activity on their behalf. (§§ 99.31(a)(3) and 99.35).
  - In connection with financial aid for which the student has applied or which the student has received, if the information is necessary to determine eligibility for the aid, determine the amount of the aid, determine the conditions of the aid, or enforce the terms and conditions of the aid. (§ 99.31(a)(4)).
  - To State and local officials or authorities to whom information is specifically allowed to be reported or disclosed by a
    State statute that concerns the juvenile justice system and the system's ability to effectively serve, prior to
    adjudication, the student whose records were released, subject to § 99.38. (§ 99.31(a)(5)).
  - To organizations conducting studies for, or on behalf of, the school, in order to: (a) develop, validate, or administer predictive tests; (b) administer student aid programs; or (c) improve instruction. (§ 99.31(a)(6)).
  - To accrediting organizations to carry out their accrediting functions. (§ 99.31(a)(7)).
  - To parents of an eligible student if the student is a dependent for IRS tax purposes. (§ 99.31(a)(8)).
  - To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena. (§ 99.31(a)(9)).
  - To appropriate officials in connection with a health or safety emergency, subject to § 99.36. (§ 99.31(a)(10)).
  - Information the school has designated as "directory information" under § 99.37. (§ 99.31(a)(11)). Specifically, the School may disclose appropriately designated "directory information" without written consent, unless you have advised the School to the contrary in accordance with School procedures. The primary purpose of directory information is to allow the School to include this type of information from your child's education records in certain school publications. Examples include:

- a playbill, showing your student's role in a drama production
- the annual yearbook
- honor roll or other recognition lists
- graduation programs; and
- sports activity sheets, such as for wrestling, showing weight and height of team members.

Directory information, which is information that is generally not considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if released, can also be disclosed to outside organizations without a parent's prior written consent. Outside organizations include, but are not limited to, companies that manufacture class rings or publish yearbooks. In addition, two federal laws require local educational agencies (LEAs) receiving assistance under the *Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965* (ESEA) to provide military recruiters of students in grades 9-12, upon request, with the following information – names, addresses, telephone numbers, and electronic mail addresses – unless parents have advised the LEA that they do not want their student's information disclosed without their prior written consent.

If you do not want the School to disclose directory information from your child's education records without your prior written consent, you must notify the Superintendent's office within two weeks of receipt of this notice. (Attn: David Heflinger, Field Local Schools, 2900 State Route 43, Mogadore, Ohio 44240). The School has designated the following information as directory information:

- Student's name
- Student's address
- Student's telephone number
- Student's date and place of birth
- Photograph
- Major field of study
- Participation in officially recognized activities and sports
- Student's weight and height if a member of an athletic team
- Dates of attendance ("from and to" dates of enrollment")
- Grade level
- Date of graduation
- Degrees, honors, and awards received
- Most recent previous educational agency or institution attended by the student
- F-mail address

### **EMPLOYMENT**

The school does not encourage students to take jobs outside of school that could interfere with their success in school. If a student believes that he/she must maintain a job in addition to going to school, he/she must obtain a work permit from the high school or middle school office.

# **ADVERTISING OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES**

No announcements or posting of outside activities will be permitted without the approval of the principal. A minimum of twenty-four (24) hour notice is required to ensure that the principal has the opportunity to review the announcement or posting.

# **VIDEO AND AUDIO SURVEILLANCE**

Students, parents, staff, and building visitors are advised that an expectation of privacy in connection with their actions and activities while in, on, or about the campus does not exist. In an effort to increase school district security, provide greater safety for students, parents, staff, and building visitors, and to reduce vandalism and theft, many areas of all district buildings and grounds, both internally and externally, shall be subjected to video and audio surveillance 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. The recordings of such observations shall be available for use by the administrative staff if necessary to enforce the student Code of Conduct provisions by the school district and the law.

# **SECTION III: ACADEMIC INFORMATION**

### HOME/SCHOOL COMMUNICATIONS

In order to keep parents informed of their child's progress in school, parents will be provided with information on a regular basis and whenever concerns arise. Many times, it will be the responsibility of the student to deliver the information. The school, however, may use email, U.S. mail, One Call Now messaging service, or the student to ensure contact. Parents/guardians are encouraged to check the Field Local Schools website regularly at www.fieldlocalschools.org. Parents and guardians are also encouraged to build a two-way link with their child's teachers and support staff by informing the staff of suggestions or concerns that may help their child better accomplish his/her educational goals.

**Report Cards:** Students will receive a report card at the end of each nine-week period indicating their grades for each course of study for that portion of the academic term.

When a student appears to be at risk of failure, reasonable efforts will be made to notify the parents so they can talk with the teacher about what actions can be taken to improve poor grades.

# **GRADES**

Field Local Schools has a standard grading procedure, as well as additional notations that may indicate work in progress or incomplete work. The purpose of a grade is to indicate the extent to which the student has acquired the necessary knowledge and/or skills. In general, students

are assigned grades based upon test results, homework, projects, and classroom participation. Each teacher may place a different emphasis on these areas; however, 75% of the assessments are formal in nature and 25% are informal. Students will be informed of a teacher's individual expectations at the beginning of the course. To pass a semester, a student must achieve a minimum grade average of 60% (D-). If a student is not sure how his/her grade will be determined, he/she should ask the teacher. If work is not completed during the grading period, the student will receive an "I" until all work is completed. If work is not completed during the student will receive a zero for each assignment.

At the middle and high school levels, parents and guardians can check student grades online through the online grading system. Personal identification numbers for accessing the online grading system will be distributed at enrollment.

# **HIGH SCHOOL EXAMS**

In order to receive credit for a course a student must achieve a minimum grade of a D-. Students may be required to take semester and/or final exams. Students who do not take a required exam or turn in a blank paper will receive a "0" for the exam. During the current school year, winter exams must be made up by January 31st and spring exams must be made up by June 30th. Students will not be able to take an early exam without the permission of the principal. The student is responsible for contacting the building principal in order to make up any exam.

### **GRADING POLICY**

The purpose of taking a course is to attain knowledge and proficiency of the subject matter. Assessments and awarding of grades show a benchmark of understanding of the subject matter at certain times during the term of a course (nine weeks and semester grades). In school these benchmarks are reviewed at the end of a course to determine if there has been sufficient progress in knowledge and in proficiency to award credit.

#### **GRADE POINT AVERAGE - GRADING SCALE**

The school uses the following grading system:

anig bystein.		
A	93-100	4.0
A-	90-92	3.7
B+	87-89	3.3
В	83-86	3.0
B-	80-82	2.7
C+	77-79	2.3
С	73-76	2.0
C-	70-72	1.7
D+	67-69	1.3
D	63-66	1.0
D-	60-62	0.7
F	50-59	0.0
I	Incomplete	
Р	Acceptable achievement	

# SEMESTER, YEAR AVERAGE, AND GRADE POINT AVERAGE

A semester average will be calculated using the **percentage** earned in each grading period and the exam in that semester. Each grading period counts as 40% of the semester average (total of 80%) and the exam counts as 20%. The year average will be the **percentage** average of the two semesters.

To calculate a grade point average (G.P.A.), assign a weighted point value to each course grade and divide it by the total number of credits. For partial-credit courses use the fractional value of the grade. For example, a half-credit course with an earned grade of a C would be  $.5 \times 2 = 1$ . Then add this to the other grades earned for total points earned. This total is then divided by the total credits earned for the G.P.A. This can be done by grading period, semester, year, or for a series of school years.

#### PROMOTION, ACCELERATION, AND RETENTION

Middle School: Promotion to the next grade (or level) is based on the following criteria:

- current level of achievement
- potential for success at the next level
- emotional, physical, and/or social maturity

# Retention Occurs in Grades 6, 7 and 8 if:

A student receives a failing grade for the year in 3 of the core subjects: Math, Language Arts, Science, or Social Studies.

-OR-

A student receives a failing grade in 2 of the core subjects listed above and also receives a failing grade in one year-long encore class.

-OR-

A student receives a failing grade in 2 of the core subjects listed above and also receives a failing grade in two semester encore classes. **Grade Status** 

High school grade status is based on the number of credits earned at the end of each school year. Contact the high school guidance department for more information.

Freshman fewer than 4.75 credits Sophomore 5-9.75 credits Junior 10-14.75 credits Senior 15 or more credits

# **GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS**

In order to receive a diploma and graduate, a student graduating in the Class of 2023 and beyond needs to meet the school requirements for basic coursework, earn the total number of minimum credits, and meet the Permanent Graduation requirements set forth by the state of Ohio. For a student enrolled in special education, the requirements of the state-mandated tests and the extent of participation in those tests will be determined by their Individualized Education Plan.

Specific course requirements for the Field High School Class of 2011 and beyond are:

English 4 units Mathematics\*\* 4 units

Science\*\* 4 units (must include 1 unit of biological and 1 unit of physical science)

Social Studies\* 4 units (must include ½ a unit of American history and 1 unit of American government and financial literacy)

Electives 4 units (must include 1 unit or 2 half units of business/technology, fine arts, or foreign language)

 $\begin{array}{lll} \mbox{Health} & \mbox{$1\!\!/\!\!2$ unit} \\ \mbox{Physical Education} & \mbox{$1\!\!/\!\!2$ unit} \\ \mbox{Total} & \mbox{21 units} \end{array}$ 

Normally a student will complete graduation requirements in four years. Students attempting to graduate before their expected graduating class will be referred to the principal for possible early high school graduation. The student will be evaluated based on past academic performance, measures of achievement based on state academic content standards, and successful completion of state mandated graduation requirements. The principal will also consider the student's own thoughts on possible accelerated placement in his/her deliberations.

Students who complete the Field High School curriculum but do not meet all the requirements regarding state-mandated testing will not graduate with their class unless they meet the alternative pathway to graduation as outlined annually by the Ohio Department of Education. If these requirements are not met, participation in commencement exercises will be denied.

### **HONORS DIPLOMA**

Field Local Schools will award the Diploma with Honors to any student who has fulfilled the established requirements for graduation or the requirements of his/her IEP; attained the applicable scores on the tests required by the State Board of Education to graduate / attained the criteria of the Permanent Graduation Pathway set forth by the state of Ohio; and has met any additional criteria the State Board may establish. The state of Ohio offers 5 Honors Diploma options: Academic Honors Diploma, Career-Tech Honors Diploma, STEM Honors Diploma, Civics and Social Sciences, and Fine Arts Honors Diploma.

Additional criteria regarding the honors diplomas are available on the school's website and in the high school guidance office.

It is the student's responsibility to maintain contact with his/her counselor to ensure that his/her graduation requirements are being met.

#### ASSESSMENTS AND STATE-MANDATED TESTS

The State has adopted a Permanent Graduation Pathway for students in the Class of 2023 and beyond. Unless exempted, this pathway requires that students earn 21 Field High School board approved credits, then requires them to demonstrate competency and readiness using the criteria listed below:

# **Demonstrate Competency**

### **Pass the Ohio State Tests**

Students need to earn a competent score of 684 on Ohio's High School English II and Algebra End of Course Exams. Students who do not earn the required score on the exams will be offered additional support and must retake the exams at least once. If the competency score is not achieved on the retake, students have 3 additional options to demonstrate competency:

# **Complete Two Career Focused Activities**

Students need to complete two Career Focused Activities from the list below.

\*One of which needs to be a Foundational Skill.

\*Attain a proficient score on 3 or more WebXams

\*Earn a 12-point industry credential

\*Complete a pre-apprenticeship or get accepted into an approved apprenticeship program

Meet the requirements for work-based learning Earn required scores on the WorkKeys Exams Obtain an OhioMeansJobs Readiness Seal

<sup>\*</sup>Maplewood Career Center student's course requirements may vary from Field's course requirements. The guidance department will provide specific information to these students.

<sup>\*\*</sup> One additional mathematics or science unit is required during the senior year.

## **Enlist in the Military**

Students can show competency by enlisting in the military- a signed contract to enter a branch of the U.S. armed services upon graduation is required.

OR

# **Complete College Coursework**

Earn credit for one college-level math and/or college-level English course through Ohio's free College Credit Plus program.

### **Demonstrate Readiness**

The final step in this pathway is to earn two diploma seals. These seals give students the chance to demonstrate academic, technical, and professional skills and knowledge that align with their passions, interests, and planned next steps after high school. \*At least one of the two seals must be Ohio-designed.

\*OhioMeansJobs Readiness Seal \*Industry-Recognized Credential Seal

\*College-Ready Seal

\*Military Enlistment Seal

\*Citizenship Seal

\*Science Seal

\*Honors Diploma Seal

\*Seal of Biliteracy

\*Technology Seal

Community Service Seal Fine and Performing Arts Seal

Student Engagement Seal

Additional details regarding this graduation pathway are available on the school's website and in the high school guidance office.

Additional group tests are given to students to monitor progress and determine educational mastery levels. These tests are used to help the staff determine instructional needs.

Classroom tests will be used to assess student progress and assign grades. These are selected or prepared by teachers to assess how well the students have achieved specific objectives.

Vocational and interest surveys may be given to identify particular areas of student interests or talent. The guidance staff often gives these surveys. College entrance testing information can be obtained from the guidance office.

# **EDUCATIONAL OPTIONS**

Field Local Schools provides alternative means by which a student can achieve his/her personal educational goals as well as the goals of the District. Inquire about approved educational options in the guidance office. In order to participate in an educational option, the student must first submit an application for approval by the principal. Students under the age of eighteen may only participate with the written consent of their parent or quardian. Applications are available in the school office. Credit will be granted upon the successful completion of an approved program and will be placed on the student's transcript. Student performance will be evaluated as either pass or fail or by awarding letter grades.

# **COLLEGE CREDIT PLUS**

Any student in grades 7 through 12 may enroll in a post-secondary program providing he/she meets the requirements established by law, by the District, and by the post-secondary institution. A student may be denied high school credit for any portion(s) or for the entire class if taken during a period of expulsion. Any interested student should contact the high school guidance department to obtain the necessary information.

# **RECOGNITION OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT**

Students who have displayed significant achievements during the course of the year are recognized for their accomplishments. Areas that may merit recognition include, but are not limited to, academics, athletics, performing arts, citizenship, and volunteerism. Recognition for such activities is initiated by the staff and coordinated by the principal.

# **ACADEMIC RECOGNITION AWARDS**

Merit Roll - 3.0 to 3.39 Honor Roll - 3.4 to 3.59 Falcon Scholar – 3.6 to 3.99 Principal's List - 4.0

# **ATHLETIC AWARDS**

Each head coach, with the approval of the athletic director, develops requirements for athletic awards. These requirements will be reviewed with interested students by the appropriate coach.

# SPECIAL AWARDS

Some examples are listed below:

High School: Academic Letter Program, Brimfield Chamber of Commerce Scholarship Award, Brimfield Lions Scholarship, Buckeye Boys State/Girls State, FLTA Joan Dolbow Memorial Scholarship Award, Field Band Boosters Instrumental Music Excellence, FLTA Scholarship, Dr. Hefty Memorial Scholarship, Manhood/Womanhood Award, National Merit Scholarship Semi-Finalist Award, Ohio Student Aid Commission Scholarship, Outstanding Senior Male/Female Athletic Awards, and SOAR Award.

**Middle School:** Academic Recognition Awards, Archie Griffin Sportsmanship Awards, Boys and Girls Leadership, Math 24, Pen Ohio, Portage County Art Show Awards, Presidential Academic Fitness Awards, SOAR Awards, and Spelling Bee.

#### PORTAGE COUNTY TEENS OF THE MONTH

The Portage County Teen Board presents this recognition monthly. Portage County high schools nominate a senior boy and senior girl each month for review by the Teen Board. Nominees are selected by the school administration and must have recommendations from two faculty members. Board membership includes a senior representative from each county high school and county office personnel. Selection is based on scholarship, activities, and service to the community. Selected students receive a commendation letter from the County Superintendent and publicity in the *Record Courier*. Teens of the month are recognized at a formal luncheon in May. The board seeks a teen of the year from a listing of monthly award winners.

#### **GRADUATION HONORS GUIDELINES**

Beginning with the class of 2019, students will have the opportunity to be recognized through the Laude System. The system will utilize grade point average. All members of the senior class are rated equally.

The Laude graduation honors system will use the following guidelines:

Summa Cum Laude GPA of 3.90 - 4.00 and have met all the requirements for an honors diploma

To be eligible for Laude graduation honors:

- A. A student must attend classes, on campus, for at least three (3) consecutive semesters before the end of the first semester of the senior year and earn at least five (5) credits toward graduation
- B. Students who accumulate five (5) or more credits evaluated by a non-numeric grade (pass/fail, satisfactory/unsatisfactory, etc.) will not be considered for Laude honors
- C. A student who transfers from an appropriately accredited or chartered high school and enrolls in Field High School because the student and his/her parents have moved into the school district, is exempt from meeting the three (3) consecutive semester residency requirements as mentioned above
- D. Students transferring from a non-chartered school or home school must have completed at least four (4) consecutive semesters, on campus at Field High School
- E. GPA is rounded to three decimal places (all subjects include) after seven (7) semesters of academic record.

# **SECTION IV: ATTENDANCE**

Attending school is necessary and required by law. State law requires school attendance until the age of eighteen. Students who do not maintain good attendance may fail, lose certain privileges, and/or have their parents or guardians taken to court. Field Local Schools has an attendance policy to avoid these negative consequences.

# ATTENDANCE ACCOUNTING/MISSING CHILDREN

The Board of Education believes in the importance of trying to decrease the number of missing children; therefore, efforts will be made to identify possible missing children and notify the proper adults or agencies. Please see Board Policy 6.10.

# ATTENDANCE PROCEDURES

Students are expected to be in all classes, study halls, or other assigned areas during the school day. Attending classes regularly helps students receive the full academic benefit of the school program. Frequent absences result in a disruption of the continuity of the educational process and time lost can never be fully regained even through makeup work. The following procedures should be followed if it is necessary for a student to be absent.

A parent or guardian must call the school office between 7:15 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. on the day of absence, reporting the name of the absent student, the reason for absence, and when the student is expected to return to school. Makeup work is permitted only if an absence is excused.

Students who arrive at school after 7:55 a.m. are marked tardy and must report directly to the office. Students who arrive after 9:30 a.m. are marked absent one-half day. A decision to excuse a tardy will be made by the Principal and/or his designee. A transportation problem is not an excuse for tardiness. Students who leave prior to 11:20 a.m. are marked absent for a full day. Students who leave after 11:20 a.m. are marked absent for one-half day.

Absences and tardiness due to medical and dental appointments must be substantiated by a note from a physician or dentist when the student returns to school.

If a student, under the age of eighteen, is truant and meets certain guidelines defined by the State of Ohio, the Field Local School District may refer a student to Juvenile Court for truancy and to the Bureau of Motor Vehicles for suspension of his/her license.

If a student, over the age of eighteen, is truant according to the guidelines designed by the State of Ohio, the Field Local School District may restrict the student from participating in senior privileges: such privileges include but are not limited to parking on campus, Walk Down Memory Lane, Senior Picnic, and Field Day.

The skipping of classes or any part of the school day is considered an unexcused absence and no makeup work will be permitted. Disciplinary action will follow.

### **AUTHORIZED ABSENCES**

Field Trips/School Business: Field trips are an extension of the classroom. Completed work is given credit. A student will not be academically penalized.

Excused Absence: If a student has an excused absence, his/her completed work will be given credit.

#### **ABSENCES AND EXCUSES**

Absences for the following reasons will be considered excused:

- A. Personal illness
- B. Serious illness or death of a family member
- C. Funeral
- D. Medical and dental appointments that cannot be arranged during non-school hours
- E. Unusual or emergency situations at home
- F. Religious holidays and activities
- G. Authorized school sponsored activities
- H. Approved college visits
- Acts of God
- J. Quarantine
- K. Out-of-state travel, not to exceed 24 hours per school year that the student's school is open for instruction, for participation in an enrichment activity approved by the Board of Education or an extracurricular activity, defined as a student activity program operated by the District but not included in a graded course of study.
- L. At the Superintendent's discretion, a visit with a parent or legal guardian who is an active-duty member of the Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps, Coast Guard, or Commissioned Corps of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration and Public Health Service and who has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or has immediately returned from deployment to a combat zone or combat support posting.
- M. Other circumstances which, in the judgment of the Superintendent, constitute a good and sufficient cause for absence from school, including, but not limited to circumstances which are out of a student's control, and which cause his/her absence due to the District's implementation of a "Remote Learning Plan" under H.B. 164, or "Blended Learning Policy" under R.C. 3301.079, if adopted by the Board.

An absence for any reason other than those listed above will be considered unexcused.

A student will have the opportunity to make up schoolwork missed due to an excused absence; however, it will be the responsibility of the student to initiate a makeup procedure and schedule with his or her teacher(s). Assignments that are given during the absence will be due with arrangement of the instructor, not to exceed the number of days absent.

The principal or his or her designee may request written verification of a student's illness from a physician licensed to practice medicine in the state in the event of frequent or extended absences attributed to personal illness.

A student must attend school for half of the school day (11:20 a.m.) in order to participate in any school sponsored activity that is conducted on that day; in cases of emergency, the principal or his/her designee may grant an exception to this limitation.

A student may accumulate up to 5 days of excused absences (per semester) with a parent or guardian telephone call for illness. Any additional absences will require a medical note from a physician, dentist, therapist, or other professional health care provider for each absence in order for the absence to be considered excused. The medical note must be in the school office within 24 hours of the student's return to school. Absence for illness will be unexcused without a medical note.

# **COMPULSORY SCHOOL ATTENDANCE**

A child between six and eighteen years of age is "of compulsory school age" for the purpose of O.R.C. 3321.01 to 3321.13, inclusive. A child under age six who has been enrolled in kindergarten also will be considered "of compulsory school age" unless at any time the child's parent or guardian, at the parent's or guardian's discretion and in consultation with the child's teacher and principal, formally withdraws the child from kindergarten. All children of compulsory school age whose parents, as defined in O.R.C. 3321.01, residing in the District will be compelled to attend the schools of this District or another school that conforms to the minimum standards prescribed by the State Board of Education or otherwise be instructed in accordance with BOE policy 6.00.

# **UNAUTHORIZED ABSENCE**

In the event of an unauthorized or unexcused absence, work is given but credit is denied. We encourage all students to keep current with assignments even if there can be no credit given. Examples of unauthorized absence and tardiness include but are not limited to oversleeping, car trouble, missing the bus, haircut/beauty shop appointments, babysitting, errands, etc. Cutting class is an unauthorized absence.

#### **EARLY DISMISSAL**

No staff member will permit or cause any student to leave school prior to the regular hour of dismissal except with the knowledge and approval of the principal and with the knowledge and approval of the student's parents.

In order for a student to be dismissed early, the individual signing the student out must be listed as an emergency contact in FinalForms and present photo identification when signing the student out.

The building principal will not excuse a student before the end of the school day without a request for early dismissal by the student's parent or guardian. Additional precautions will be taken by the administration which are appropriate to the age of students and as needs arise.

No student will be released to any government agency without a proper warrant or written parental permission except in the event of an emergency as determined by the principal.

### **TARDINESS**

Students are considered tardy if they are not in class when the bell rings. All students who are tardy to school must report to the school office to sign in. When a teacher detains a student after class, he/she will issue a late pass for the student's next class. This is optional at the elementary level.

Students who are tardy to class or study halls will be considered unexcused unless they have an excused slip from the office or a signed pass from a teacher. Tardiness to school due to medical and dental appointments or circumstances which constitute good and sufficient cause as determined by the principal or assistant principal are considered excused. In such cases, the school must receive a note from a parent or a medical note from a physician, dentist, therapist, or other professional health care provider.

Teachers are to refer cases of chronic tardiness to the principal or assistant principal. Excessive/habitual absenteeism may result in consequences such as, but not limited to, referral to juvenile court, detention, and/or loss of parking privileges at Field High School.

### **VACATIONS DURING THE SCHOOL YEAR**

Vacations during the school year are undesirable. Conditions for vacation approval are listed below:

- The student's current year attendance record must be satisfactory as determined by the principal.
- Students requesting a vacation must get written approval from their guardian and be accompanied by a parent, legal guardian, or an adult relative on the vacation.
- If the student is not maintaining an average grade of "C" or better, permission for excused absences is at the discretion of the principal or assistant principal.
- A maximum of five (5) school days per year will be granted. Exceptions to this rule must be for a special emergency situation. At the discretion of the school authority, classwork may or may not be made up upon return from vacation. If makeup work is permitted, the length of time for completion of the work will commensurate with the length of the absence.
- Work that is not made up will receive zero credit and will be averaged according to the grading procedure. A minor or eighteen-year-old student who goes on vacation without the school's approval will be in violation of the attendance rules. The vacation will be considered an unexcused absence as well as truancy for the minor.
- Written permission by the principal or his/her designee must be given to the student prior to going on vacation and a copy of this permission is to be placed in the student's permanent folder.

# MAKEUP OF TESTS AND OTHER SCHOOL WORK

Students who have an absence from school that is excused will be given the opportunity to make up work that has been missed. The student should contact his/her teachers as soon as possible to obtain assignments.

A student may make up units of study with a properly licensed teacher if the principal has granted prior approval.

Students will be given the opportunity to make up work that was missed due to approved absences. The length of time for completion of makeup work will commensurate with the length of the absence.

#### **EXCESSIVE AND HABITUAL ABSENTEEISM**

The discipline of students who are excessively and/or habitually absent will be in accordance with Board Policy 6.09 and House Bill 410. Legislators and the Board of Education have established this policy in order to provide guidance to employees in addressing and improving the attendance practice of any student who is habitually absent.

If the absenteeism persists, and the student becomes "habitually absent," the school will convene an Absence Intervention Team which may include parents, educators, and other supportive adults to develop an Absence Intervention Plan. Absence Intervention Plans may incorporate academic and non-academic support to remove barriers to regular attendance. Parent engagement in this process is critical.

Every day counts. Missing school even 10% of the time has a significant negative impact on reading and math achievement as children progress through school. The state of Ohio put a law (HB 410) into effect with expectations of attendance for all students. Field Local Schools adopted this policy and has changed all guidelines to reflect this. Please review this with your son/daughter and make sure he/she is aware of the changes and understands the process that will be followed.

#### Attendance Definitions:

- Excessive Absenteeism:
  - o Absent 38 or more hours in one school month with or without a legitimate excuse
  - Absent 65 or more hours in one school year with or without a legitimate excuse
- Habitual Absenteeism:
  - o Absent 30 or more consecutive hours without a legitimate excuse
  - o Absent 42 or more hours in one school month without a legitimate excuse
  - o Absent 72 or more hours in one school year without a legitimate excuse
- If your student meets the definition of excessive absenteeism, the district will:
  - o notify the family in writing
  - o The student and family may be referred to community resources.
- If your student meets the definition of habitual absenteeism, the district will:
  - o assign the student to an Absence Intervention Team.
  - o attempt to secure parent participation on the Absence Intervention Team.
  - o develop an Absence Intervention Plan.
  - o If the student does not make progress on the plan or continues to be absent, the district may file a complaint in the juvenile court.

### **DETENTION OF STUDENTS BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL**

Reasonable detention at the beginning or end of the school day is allowed. In all cases involving bus riders, parents are to be notified a day in advance so that alternate transportation may be arranged.

# **SECTION V: STUDENT ACTIVITIES**

Field Local Schools provides students the opportunity to broaden their learning through curricular-related activities. A curricular-related activity may be for credit, required for a particular course, and/or contain school subject matter.

The school has many student groups that are authorized by the school. It is the District's policy that authorized groups are only those approved by the Board of Education and sponsored by a staff member. Extracurricular activities do not reflect the school curriculum but are made available to students to allow them to pursue additional worthwhile activities such as recreational sports, drama, and the like.

# SCHOOL SPONSORED CLUBS AND ACTIVITIES

According to the policy of the Board of Education, co-curricular activities exist to meet the wide range of vocational, recreational, social, and cultural needs and interests of the students. Therefore, all students are encouraged to join at least one club or activity.

### **Existing Clubs or Activities**

At the start of the school year, all students should be provided with information on existing clubs, co-curricular, and extracurricular activities and encouraged to participate.

# **New Activities**

All new activities will be approved in the following manner:

- 1. Requests for new activities should be submitted to the principal and contain the following:
  - a. purpose and rationale
  - b. intended outcomes for students
  - c. participation
  - d. plan of operation
  - e costs
  - f. persons in charge
- The Superintendent will review each request and either reject or submit each for board approval.
- 3. Upon approval, an activity will be listed as a part of the co-curricular or extracurricular program and its fiscal account established by the treasurer.

# **Fiscal Compliance**

Both co-curricular and extracurricular activities will comply with financial and bookkeeping controls established in conformance with the recommendations of the state auditor. Each activity advisor or coach is to provide the building principal with a periodic update on the fiscal status of the activity.

# **Operating Guidelines**

The principal will prepare and publish operating procedures for all co-curricular/extracurricular activities which ensure that:

- 1. students participate in ways that do not interfere with their academic programs,
- 2. the safety and welfare of the students are adequately safeguarded,
- 3. all activities have proper planning, direction, and supervision,
- 4. faculty members work cooperatively so that some activities do not interfere with the operations of others,

- 5. staff members and students are encouraged to attend activities involving student performances,
- 6. each activity is assessed continuously relative to its stated purpose and goals, and
- 7. building facilities and equipment are being used safely and as intended and are being maintained in proper condition.

# **Activity Conflicts**

Many students have multiple talents and interests they wish to develop or pursue through participation in District sponsored activities and groups. Since the District's policy is to encourage such participation, the following guidelines have been established for dealing with potential schedule conflicts a student could experience when participating in more than one (1) activity.

- 1. At the beginning of each semester or season, each staff member in charge of a credit course, co-curricular, or extracurricular activity is to prepare a schedule for any practices, performances, or other after-school obligations involved in participation. This information will be sent to the school principal.
- 2. By the first day of an activity, students are to be made aware of the schedule of any practices and performances as well as other obligations. Each staff member in charge is to determine which, if any, students will have conflicts with other activities in which they wish to participate.
- 3. If such conflicts exist, the staff members in charge of the activities in conflict are to meet for the purpose of resolving the conflict. The emphasis should be on modifying the requirements so the student can participate in multiple activities.
- 4. If it is not possible to resolve the conflict without seriously undermining the integrity of the activity program, the following procedure will be followed:
  - a. If one of the activities provides the student with credit and the other one does not, the student and his/her parents are to be made aware of the possible consequences of not enrolling in each activity and of not meeting the obligations for participation.
  - b. If both activities are credit activities, the student is to be advised to contact his/her counselor to work out a solution that does not penalize the student.
  - c. If one of the activities is an after-school, off-shoot of a credit activity, but is not a credit activity (e.g., jazz band from concert band) the requirements for the credit activity may not be imposed as a condition for participating in the noncredit after-school activity.
  - d. If the conflict cannot be settled, the student may have to choose between activities.
- 5. When the activity or program begins, the students are responsible for the following:
  - a. If a student encounters a previously unforeseen conflict during the semester or season, he/she should inform all staff members in charge as soon as possible in order to increase the likelihood that an accommodation can be worked out.
  - b. If, during the year, an unanticipated situation develops which creates a conflict in the schedule for a student, he/she should discuss the conflict with the counselor who, in turn, will work with the staff members in charge to try to reach an accommodation that is most advantageous to the student and least disadvantageous for the activities involved.
  - c. If a student is experiencing difficulty in deciding between activities, he/she should contact the counselor to discuss the alternatives rather than discuss it with the staff members in charge.

### **Prohibition from Extracurricular Activities**

Participation in extracurricular activities, including interscholastic sports, is a privilege and not a right. Therefore, the Board of Education authorizes the Superintendent, principals, assistant principals, and other authorized personnel employed by the District to supervise or coach a student activity program and to prohibit a student from participating in any/all extracurricular activities of the District for offenses or violations of the Student Code of Conduct. They may suspend them for a period not to exceed the remainder of the school year in which the offense or violation of the Student Code of Conduct took place.

In addition, student athletes are further subjected to the Athletic Code of Conduct and may be prohibited from participating in all or part of any interscholastic sport for violations therein.

# 1. Suspension from Extracurricular Activities

Before being suspended, the person considering the suspension will provide the student with the following:

- a. Written notice of the intention to suspend and the reasons for the intended suspension; and
- b. An opportunity to appear at an informal hearing before a person authorized to suspend a student from any or all extracurricular activities, to challenge the reason for the suspension or to otherwise explain the student's actions.

If a suspension is imposed, the student will receive written notice of the suspension, including the reasons and the date the suspension begins and the date it ends.

The student may appeal the decision of an assistant principal, teacher, coach, or activity advisor to his/her building principal. The decision of the principal on such an appeal will be final.

If a building principal, rather than another staff member, initiates the removal of a student from extracurricular activities, the student may appeal the initial decision of the principal to the Superintendent. The decision of the Superintendent will be final.

#### **ATHLETICS**

Field Local Schools provides a variety of athletic activities in which students may participate, providing they meet District and state eligibility requirements. Participation in these activities is a privilege and not a right, and students may be prohibited from all or part of their participation in such activities by authorized school personnel without further notice, hearing and/or appeal rights in accordance with Board Policy 6.43.

For a current list of activities contact the Athletic Director at 330-673-2387.

### Athletic Ticket Prices (Subject to change)

Administrators in the Metro Athletic Conference set ticket prices for single game events at the middle and high school level. The single game prices are as follows:

### Varsity/Junior Varsity Games:

Adults: \$7.00 Students: \$5.00

### Freshman/8th/7th Grade Games:

Adults \$5.00 Students \$3.00

Senior citizens will be admitted free to any sporting event within the MAC League.

Pre-K and Kindergarten students will be admitted free to all home events. Students are not permitted to re-enter an event unless accompanied by an adult.

All tickets will be available for purchase on the Field Local Schools Athletic website. Multiple swipe passes can also be purchased on the Athletic website. https://fieldlocalschools.hometownticketing.com/embed/all.

Students can purchase a Falcon Student Pass which is good for all high school and middle school HOME events. Price is \$50. They will be available in the athletic office in August.

Parents can purchase a Fall and/or Winter Pass for \$140.00 per season. These passes are good for any family member in your household and for any HOME event. Fall season events are Football, Volleyball and Soccer. Winter season events are Basketball and Wrestling.

### Athletic Eligibility

Field Middle and High Schools are members of the Ohio High School Athletic Association (OHSAA), and athletic eligibility will comply with State regulations and the provisions set forth by the OHSAA, which include:

**Rule 4-4-1:** In order to be eligible in grades 9-12 a student must be currently enrolled and must have been enrolled in school the immediately preceding grading period. During the preceding grading period, the student must have received passing grades in a minimum of **FIVE** one-credit courses or the equivalent, which count toward graduation.

**Rule 4-4-3:** The eligibility or ineligibility of a student continues until the start of the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) school day of the next grading period, at which time the grades from the immediately preceding grading period become effective. Eligibility or ineligibility for the first grading period commences with the start of the fall sports season.

**Rule 4-4-4:** A student enrolled in the first grading period after the advancement from the eighth grade must have passed a minimum of five of all subjects carried the immediately preceding grading period in which the student was enrolled.

**Rule 4-4-5:** A student enrolling in the seventh grade for the first time will be eligible for the first grading period regardless of previous academic achievement. Thereafter, in order to be eligible, a student in grades 7 or 8 must be currently enrolled and must have been enrolled in school the immediately preceding grading period and received passing grades during that grading period in the percentage or credit deemed necessary by the OHSAA.

### Age Limitations

**Grades 9-12:** If a student enrolled in high school reaches the age of 19 before August 1, the student will be ineligible to participate in high school interscholastic athletics for the school year commencing in that calendar year.

# Field Local Schools Eligibility Policy

- 1. A complete physical form must be on file in the athletic office in order for an athlete to be eligible to compete.
- 2. OHSAA Rule 4-4-1
- 3. Any high school student below a 1.0 average for a nine-week period will be ineligible for the next grading period.
- 4. Any student athlete who earns below a 2.0 will be placed on probation. Probation will consist of each of the following:
  - a. The student will be placed on academic study tables as set forth by the Athletic/Extracurricular Handbook.
  - b. The student needs a passing or improved report from each teacher on the report card.
  - c. If both requirements (a and b) are met by the end of the quarter, the student will be taken off probation.

d. A deficiency in either requirement (a or b) will result in the athlete becoming ineligible for the remainder of the nine weeks and/or will result in additional consequences set forth by the Athletic Department including loss of play time.

### ATTENDANCE AT SCHOOL EVENTS

The school encourages students to attend as many school events held after school as possible, without interfering with their schoolwork and home activities. Enthusiastic spectators help build school spirit and encourage those students who are participating in the event. However, in order to ensure that students attending evening events as nonparticipants are properly safeguarded, it is strongly advised that a parent or adult chaperone accompany students when they attend the event. The school is not responsible for supervising unaccompanied students nor will it be responsible for students who arrive without an adult chaperone.

### **NON-SCHOOL SPONSORED CLUBS AND ACTIVITIES**

Non-school sponsored student groups may meet in the school building during non-instructional hours. These student groups need to provide proof of \$1,000,000 in liability insurance and may be charged a fee. The application for permission to use school facilities can be obtained from the principal. The application must verify that students are initiating the activity, attendance is voluntary, the event will not interfere with school activities, and non-school persons do not play a regular role in the meeting. School rules will still apply regarding behavior and equal opportunity to participate.

Membership in any fraternity, sorority, or other secret society as prescribed by law is not permitted. All groups must comply with school rules and must provide equal opportunity to participate.

Non-school sponsored organizations may not use the name of the school or school mascot on any materials or information.

# SECTION VI: MEDICAL INFORMATION

#### **IMMUNIZATIONS**

Each student must have the immunizations required by law or have an authorized waiver. If a student does not have the necessary immunizations or waivers, in accordance with state law, the principal or designee will require compliance with a set deadline or may remove the student. This is for the safety of all students. Any questions about immunizations or waivers should be directed to the District RN.

### **EMERGENCY MEDICAL AUTHORIZATION**

The board has established a policy that every student must have an Emergency Medical Authorization form completed and signed by his/her parents in order to participate in any activity on or off school grounds. This includes field trips, spectator trips, athletic and other extracurricular activities, and co-curricular activities. The form is available on FinalForms.

### **INJURY AND ILLNESS**

All injuries must be reported to a teacher, the school clinic, or office. If the injuries are minor, the student will be treated and may return to class. If medical attention is required, the clinic/office will follow the school's emergency procedures.

A student who becomes ill during the school day should request permission from the teacher to go to the clinic/office. The clinic/office staff will determine whether or not the student should remain in school or go home. No student will be released from the school without proper permission from a parent or guardian.

### **USE OF MEDICATIONS**

## **Prescribed Medications**

In those circumstances where a student must take prescribed medication during the school day, according to state law the following guidelines are observed:

- A. Parents should, with their physician's counsel, determine whether the medication schedule can be adjusted to avoid administering medication during school hours.
- B. The "Prescription Medication Administered at School" form must be filed with the clinic staff before the student will be allowed to begin taking any medication during school hours.
- C. All medications must be registered with the clinic staff.
- D. Medication that is brought to the office will be properly secured. Medication **MAY NOT** be sent to school in a student's lunch box, pocket, or other means on or about the student. An exception to this would be prescriptions for emergency medications, for allergies and/or reactions, or asthma inhalers.
- E. Any unused medication unclaimed by the parent will be destroyed by school personnel when a prescription is no longer to be administered or at the end of the school year.
- F. The parents will have sole responsibility to instruct their child to take the medication at the scheduled time.

- G. A log for each prescribed medication will be maintained which will note the personnel giving the medication, the date, and the time of day. This log will be maintained along with the physician's written request and the parent's written release.
- H. Medications must be provided in the containers in which the prescribing physician or licensed pharmacist dispensed them.

#### Non-prescribed (over the counter) Medications

Parents may authorize the school to administer a non-prescribed medication using a "Non-Prescription Medication Administered at School" form, which is available in the clinic or school office. The student is not permitted to keep this medication in his/her possession.

If a student is found using or possessing a non-prescribed medication without parent authorization, he/she will be brought to the school office and the parents or guardians will be contacted for written authorization. The medication will be confiscated until written authorization is received.

Any student who distributes a medication of any kind to another student or is found to possess a medication other than the one authorized is in violation of the school's code of conduct and will be disciplined in accordance with the drug-use provision of the code.

A student may possess and use a metered dose inhaler or a dry powder inhaler to alleviate asthmatic symptoms or to prevent the onset of asthmatic symptoms before exercise. The inhaler may be used at school or at an activity, event, or program sponsored by or in which the student's school is a participant if the appropriate form is filled out and on file in the clinic. A student who is authorized to possess and use a metered dose or dry powder inhaler may not transfer possession of any inhaler or other medication to any other student.

#### **COMMUNICABLE DISEASES**

#### Casual Contact

Because a school has a high concentration of people, it is necessary to take specific measures when the health or safety of the group is at risk. The school's professional staff has the authority to remove or isolate a student who has been ill or has been exposed to a communicable disease or high-transient pest, such as lice. Specific diseases include diphtheria, scarlet fever, strep infections, whooping cough, mumps, measles, rubella, and other conditions indicated by the local and state health departments. Removal will be only for the contagious period.

#### **Non-casual Contact**

In the case of non-casual contact communicable diseases, the school still has the obligation to protect the safety of the staff and students. In these cases, the person in question will have his/her status reviewed by a panel of resource people, including the county health department, to ensure that the rights of the person affected and those in contact with that person are respected. The school will seek to keep students and staff persons in school unless there is definitive evidence to warrant exclusion. Non-casual contact communicable diseases include sexually transmitted, diseases, AIDS (Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome), ARC-AIDS Related Complex, HIV (Human Immunodeficiency), Hepatitis B, Hepatitis C, and other disease that may be specified by the State Board of Health.

As required by federal law, parents or guardians will be asked to have their child's blood checked for HIV and HBV when the child has bled at school and students or staff members have been exposed to the blood. Any testing is subject to laws protecting confidentiality.

# **SECTION VII - TRANSPORTATION**

#### **BUS TRANSPORTATION TO SCHOOL**

The school provides bus transportation for all K-8 students who live farther than one mile from school. Presently, there is no school-provided transportation for students in grades 9-12. The bus schedule and route are available by contacting the administration office at 330-673-2659. All students must ride their regularly scheduled bus to and from school unless they have a written request from their parent or legal guardian describing an emergency situation. This note must be presented to the building principal on the morning of the request.

# **HOMELESSNESS**

Transportation for students experiencing homelessness will be provided in accordance with the McKinney-Vento Act, 42 U.S.C.11431 et seq.

For inquiries, please contact Field's District Homeless Liaison:
Director of Curriculum

2900 State Route 43 Field Administration Office 330-673-2659

# **BUS CONDUCT**

Students who are riding to and from school on transportation provided by the school are required to follow some basic safety rules. This applies to school-owned buses as well as any contracted transportation that may be provided. The driver is responsible for student safety and may assign seating or direct the student in any reasonable manner to maintain that safety.

The following behaviors are expected of all students:

# Prior To Loading (on the road and at school)

Each student will do the following:

- 1. be on time at the designated loading zone five nine minutes prior to scheduled stop,
- 2. stay off the road at all times while walking to and waiting for the bus,
- 3. line up single file off the roadway to enter,
- 4. wait until the bus is completely stopped before moving forward to enter,
- 5. refrain from crossing a highway until the bus driver signals it is safe, and
- 6. go immediately to a seat and be seated.

It is the parent's or guardian's responsibility to inform the bus driver when their child will not be boarding the bus. The bus will not wait.

### **During The Trip**

Each student will do the following:

- 1. remain seated while the bus is in motion,
- 2. keep head, hands, arms, and legs inside the bus at all times,
- 3. keep the level of noise to a minimum,
- 4. not litter in the bus or throw anything from the bus.
- 5. keep books, packages, coats, and all other objects out of the aisle,
- 6. be courteous to the driver and to other bus riders,
- 7. not eat or play games, cards, etc., and
- 8. not tamper with the bus or any of its equipment.

### **Exiting The Bus**

Each student will do the following:

- 1. remain seated until the bus has stopped,
- 2. cross the road, when necessary, at least ten (10) feet in front of the bus, but only after the driver signals that it is safe, and
- 3. be alert to a possible danger signal from the driver.

The driver will not discharge students at places other than their regular stop at home or at school unless he/she has proper authorization from school officials.

### PENALTIES FOR BUS CONDUCT INFRACTIONS

A student who has a behavior problem on the bus will be disciplined in accordance with the student discipline code and may be deprived of the privilege of riding on the bus.

## VIDEO AND AUDIO SURVEILLANCE ON SCHOOL TRANSPORTATION

Audio and video surveillance recordings are also used on all district transportation. The recordings of such observations shall be available for use by the administrative staff if necessary to enforce the student Code of Conduct provisions by the school district and the law.

# RESTRICTION OF BUS RIDING/TRANSPORTATION PRIVILEGES

When a student is being considered for a restriction of bus riding/transportation privileges, the administrator in charge will notify the student of the reason. The student will then be given an opportunity to explain his/her side. After that informal hearing, an administrator will decide whether or not to restrict his/her bus riding/transportation privileges for all or part of the school year. If a student's bus riding/transportation privileges are restricted, he/she and his/her parents or guardians will be notified.

# SECTION VIII: COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY, NETWORKS, AND OTHER ELECTRONIC DEVICES

### **EMAIL, INTERNET, AND COMPUTER USE**

Before any student may take advantage of the school's email, Internet, or computers, he/she and his/her parents or guardians must sign an agreement, which defines the conditions under which the student may participate. Failure to abide by all of the terms of the agreement may lead to termination of the student's privileges and possible disciplinary action as outlined in the student code of conduct or referral to law enforcement authorities.

Students are encouraged to use the School District's computers/network and Internet connection for educational purposes. Use of such resources is a privilege, not a right. Students must conduct themselves in a responsible, efficient, ethical, and legal manner. Unauthorized or inappropriate use, including any violation of Board Policy 6.48, may result in cancellation of the privilege, disciplinary action consistent with the student handbook, and/or civil or criminal liability. Prior to using school computers or accessing student email or the Internet, parents must sign the <u>Technology, Internet. and Photo Usage Form</u>. Smooth operation of the School District's network relies upon users adhering to the following guidelines, regardless of time, device, or location in which the accounts are managed by the district. The guidelines outlined below are provided so that users are aware of their responsibilities.

- A. Users will not violate federal, state law, or encourage others to violate the law.
- B. Users may not cause harm to others or damage their property.

- C. Users should not disclose or share their password with others or impersonate another user.
- D. Students and other users may not sell or buy anything over the Internet.
- E. All users are expected to abide by the accepted rules of network etiquette. These include (but are not limited to) the following:
  - a. Be polite.
  - b. Use appropriate language.
  - c. Avoid language and uses which may be offensive to other users.
  - d. Do not assume that a sender of email is giving his or her permission to forward or redistribute the message to third parties or to give his or her email address to third parties.
  - e. Do not use the network in such a way that would disrupt the use of the network by other users.
  - f. Be considerate when sending attachments by email.
- F. All users and their parents/guardians are advised that access to the electronic network may include the potential for access to materials that are inappropriate for school-aged students.
- G. In using the computer network and Internet, users should not reveal personal information.
- H. It is a violation of this policy to use the school's computer network or the Internet to gain unauthorized access to other computers or computer systems, or to attempt to gain such unauthorized access.
- I. Users should never give out private or confidential information about themselves or others on the Internet.

### **CELL PHONES AND OTHER PERSONAL ELECTRONIC DEVICES**

Personal electronic devices may be used for educational purposes only, at the teacher's discretion during class time. At no time are students allowed to "play" on their devices without an educational purpose and/or teacher direction. Students are never permitted to make calls, create recordings, or take pictures unless directed to do so by a teacher. If a student violates the electronic device policy, the device can be confiscated. For more specific details, please refer to each school building's policies governing cell phone and electronic device use.

# SECTION IX: CODE OF CONDUCT

A major component of the educational program at Field is to prepare students to become responsible citizens by learning how to conduct themselves properly and in accordance with established standards.

### **EXPECTED BEHAVIORS**

Each student will be expected to:

- abide by national, state, and local laws as well as the rules of the school,
- respect the rights of others,
- act courteously to adults and fellow students,
- be prompt to school and attentive in class,
- work cooperatively with others when involved in accomplishing a common goal regardless of the other's ability, gender, race, or ethnic background.
- complete assigned tasks on time and as directed.
- help maintain a school environment that is safe, friendly, and productive,
- exhibit responsibility and self-control, and
- act at all times in a manner that reflects pride in self, family, and in the school.

### **HARASSMENT (Bullying)**

The harassment of a student, staff member, or other person associated with the District is not permitted. Harassment includes any speech or action that creates a hostile, intimidating, or offensive learning environment. Under no circumstances will the school tolerate threats or retaliation against anyone who raises or files a harassment complaint.

Sexual harassment includes unwelcome sexual advances or any form of improper physical contact or sexual remark. Some forms of sexual harassment of a student by another student may be considered a form of child abuse, which will require that the student-abuser be reported to the proper authorities.

Harassment of a student by other students or any staff member is a violation of federal law and is contrary to the Board of Education's commitment to provide a physically and psychologically safe environment in which to learn. Anyone found to have violated this policy and/or the code of conduct will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal from the District.

Any student who believes he/she is the victim of any of the above actions or has observed such actions taken by another student, staff member, or other person associated with the District, or by third parties should contact the principal.

The student may make contact by a written report, telephone, or personal visit. During this contact, the reporting student should provide the name of the person(s) whom he/she believes to be responsible for the harassment and the nature of the harassing incident(s). A written summary of each such report will be prepared promptly and a copy forwarded to the principal.

Each report of harassment will be investigated in a timely and confidential manner by the principal and/or his/her designee. While a charge is under investigation, no information will be released to anyone who is not involved with the investigation, except as may be required by law or in the context of a legal or administrative proceeding. No one involved is to discuss the subject outside of the investigation.

Given the nature of harassing behavior, the school recognizes that false accusations can have serious effects on innocent individuals. Therefore, all students are expected to act responsibly, honestly, and with the utmost candor whenever they present harassment allegations or charges.

#### DRESSING AND GROOMING

Students are expected to dress appropriately at all times. Any fashion (dress, accessory, or hairstyle) that disrupts the educational process or presents a safety risk will not be permitted.

Students should consider the following questions when dressing for school:

- Am I dressed appropriately for the weather? (yes)
- Do I feel comfortable with my appearance? (yes)
- Does my clothing expose too much? (no)
- Does my clothing advertise something that is prohibited to minors? (no)
- Are there obscene, profane, lewd, drug-related, gang-related, or inflammatory messages on my clothing? (no)

### STUDENT DRESS CODE

Students' dress should be appropriate to the educational activities and the school environment and should be governed by good sense, good taste, and cleanliness. Much responsibility is placed upon parents for student appearance.

The Board of Education prohibits student dress or grooming practices which:

- 1. Present a hazard to the health or safety of the student himself/herself or to others in the school
- 2. Materially interfere with schoolwork, create disorder, or disrupt the educational program
- 3. Cause excessive wear or damage to school property
- 4. Prevent the student from achieving his or her own educational objectives because of blocked vision or restricted movement.

Clothing is prohibited that bears statements, slogans, images, illustrations or insignia that are indecent, offensive, obscene, profane, lewd, vulgar; or that harasses, threatens, intimidates, demeans, suggests, or promotes violence against an individual or group of individuals because of their sex, color, race, religion, disability, or national origin, or otherwise constitutes sexual or other forms of harassment prohibited by Board policy or the Student Handbook; or that advertises, promotes or depicts alcoholic beverages, tobacco products or illegal drugs.

Gang-related paraphernalia (gang symbols, jewelry, emblems) or signs in communication (written or oral) are not permitted.

School dress and grooming should be similar to what would be appropriate for an informal place of business. School dress and grooming should not have a distracting influence or pose a possible health or safety hazard.

The following shall serve as guidelines for appropriate dress for school. They are not intended to be comprehensive. The final decision about any dress code violation shall rest with the building principal.

- 1. Skirts shall cover the mid-upper thigh.
- 2. Shorts shall have at least a two-inch inseam. Pockets shall not be visibly sticking out from under shorts.
- 3. Shirts shall fully cover the midriff.
- 4. Halters, backless and strapless tops are not permitted. Tops must cover cleavage. Tank tops are permitted.
- 5. Underwear shall be covered at all times. Underwear or skin shall not be visible through clothing.
- 6. Hats, hoods, bandannas, and all other head coverings shall not be worn in a school building during the school day. Head coverings worn for religious purposes are exempt from this prohibition.
- 7. Clothing, jewelry and other accessories that contain sharp edges or spikes are not permitted.
- 8. Clothing and accessories shall not reference, depict, advertise, or suggest drugs, tobacco, illegal substances, weapons, violence, profanity, or obscenities.
- 9. Shoes must be safe for the environment.

If a student is sent to the office for a dress code violation, he/she will be asked to change clothes. If he/she does not have a change of clothing, a parent or guardian will be called and asked to bring a change of clothes from home. The objective is to return students to class as soon as possible, but students will not be allowed to return to class until the dress code violation is fixed. A student may be assigned an in-school restriction if he/she refuses to change or while waiting for a parent/guardian to arrive with a change of clothes. Repeated violations of this policy may result in disciplinary consequences.

### **CARE OF PROPERTY**

Students are responsible for the care of their own personal property. Valuables such as jewelry or irreplaceable items should not be brought to school. The school is not responsible or liable for damage to or theft of personal property.

If a student loses or damages school property, the student or his/her parents/guardians will be required to pay for the damage or replacement of the property. If the damage or loss was intentional, the student will be subject to discipline according to the student discipline code.

# **CONDUCT (Zero Tolerance)**

A student who fails to comply with established school rules or with any reasonable request made by school personnel in accordance with Board of Education policy is subject to approved student discipline. The Board will not tolerate violent, disruptive, or inappropriate behavior, including excessive truancy, by its students.

# DISCIPLINE

It is important to remember that the school's rules apply going to and from school, at school, on school property, at school-sponsored events, on school transportation, and on property not owned or controlled by the board but that is connected to activities or incidents that have occurred on

property owned or controlled by the board. Furthermore, students may be disciplined for conduct that is directed at a board official or employee, or the property of such official or employee, regardless of where or when it occurs.

Ultimately, it is the principal's responsibility to keep things orderly. In all cases, the school will attempt to make discipline prompt and equitable and to have the punishment match the severity of the incident.

Two (2) types of discipline are possible: informal and formal.

# Informal Discipline

Informal discipline takes place within the school. It includes, but is not limited to:

Writing assignments
Change of seating
In-school restriction
Lunchtime detentions
Before or after school detentions
Disciplinary removal
Community service
Parental contact
Schedule changes

Loss of parking privileges (high school)

The following rules will apply to in-school restriction:

Restorative Justice

- 1. Assignments are provided and credit is given for assignments that are completed during the in-school restriction.
- 2. Students are required to have class assignments with them. If a student does not bring work, the monitor will provide work.
- 3. Students are not to communicate with each other unless given special permission to do so.
- 4. Students are to remain in their designated seat at all times unless permission is granted to do otherwise.
- 5. Students will not be allowed to put their heads down or sleep.
- 6. No radios, cell phones, cards, magazines, or other recreational articles will be allowed in the room.
- 7. No food or beverages will be consumed with the exception of lunch.

A student missing any portion of his/her assigned time during in-school discipline may be given additional time. Failure to timely serve in-school discipline may lead to a suspension from school. Any such disciplinary action will be in accordance with District guidelines.

### **Formal Discipline**

D.

Students being considered for suspension, expulsion, or permanent exclusion are entitled to an informal hearing with the building administrator prior to removal at which time the student will be notified of the charges and given the opportunity to respond.

Students involved in co-curricular and extracurricular activities such as band and athletics can lose their eligibility for violating the school rules. This is especially true for infractions involving drugs, alcohol, tobacco use, or harassment.

If a student commits a crime while under the school's jurisdiction, he/she may be subject to school disciplinary action as well as legal action.

- A. <u>Suspension</u> is defined as the denial to a student for a period of at least one but not more than ten days of permission to attend school and to take part in any school function. Credit is given for completed work missed due to out-of-school suspension.
- B. Expulsion is defined as the denial to a student of permission to attend school and to take part in any school function, for a period exceeding ten school days but not exceeding the greater of 80 school days, or one year in certain circumstances, or the number of school days remaining in the semester or term in which the incident that gives rise to the expulsion takes place, unless the expulsion is extended. Whenever an incident occurs that may lead to an expulsion the principal may suspend a student prior to the expulsion hearing.
- C. <u>Emergency removal</u> is defined as the denial of permission to be on school premises or at curricular activities to a student whose presence poses a continuing danger to persons or property or an ongoing threat of disrupting the academic process.
- E. <u>Permanent exclusion</u> means the prohibition of a student forever from attending any public school in Ohio that is operated by a city, local, exempted village, or joint vocational school district.
  - 1. A student may be permanently excluded from attending any of the public schools of this state if the student is convicted of or adjudicated a delinquent child for committing, when he/she was 16 years of age or older, an act that would be a criminal offense if committed by an adult and if the act is any of the following: O.R.C. 2923.122, 2923.12, 2925.03, 2925.11, 2903.01, 2903.02, 2903.03, 2903.04, 2903.11, 2903.12, 2907.02, 2907.05, or former O.R.C. 2907.12. Also, complicity in any violation set forth in the section on reasons for permanent exclusion that was alleged to have been committed in the manner described above, regardless of whether the act of complicity was committed on property owned or controlled by, or at an activity held under the auspices of a Board of Education.
  - 2. If the Superintendent obtains or receives proof that a student has been convicted of committing a violation listed in the section on reasons for permanent exclusion when he/she was 16 years of age or older or was adjudicated a delinquent child for the commission, when he/she was 16 years of age or older, of a violation listed in the section on reasons for permanent exclusion, the Superintendent may issue to the Board a request that the student be permanently excluded from public school attendance in accordance with O.R.C. 3313.662.

#### **DUE PROCESS RIGHTS**

Before a student may be suspended, expelled, or permanently excluded from school, there are specific procedures that must be followed. See BOE policy 6.18 for more detail.

#### **DISCIPLINE OF STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES**

Students with disabilities will be entitled to the rights and procedures afforded by the Individuals with Disabilities Act (I.D.E.I.A.), and, where applicable, the Americans with Disabilities Act (A.D.A.), and/or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

### **SEARCH AND SEIZURE**

School authorities are charged with the responsibility of safeguarding the safety and well-being of the students in their care. School authorities may search the person or property (including vehicles, lockers, purses, backpacks, gym bags, etc.) of a student, with or without the student's consent, whenever they reasonably suspect that the search is required to discover evidence of a violation of law or of school rules. The extent of the search will be governed by the seriousness of the alleged infraction and the student's age. A general housekeeping inspection of school property may be conducted with reasonable notice.

When the police have probable cause to believe that a student is in possession of unlawful or dangerous items, a search may be conducted without a previously issued warrant.

In collaboration with police, properly trained canines may be used to sniff lockers, automobiles, and other places on the District premises.

If there is a reasonable basis for suspecting that a particular student has committed or is committing a violation of a law or District rule, a properly trained canine may be used to detect evidence of that violation by sniffing that student. If a canine indicates the presence of evidence of the violation of laws or District rules on the student's person, the student may be searched for evidence of the suspected violation.

Anything that is found in the course of a search that may be used as evidence of a violation of school rules or the law may be taken, held, or turned over to the police. The school reserves the right not to return items which have been confiscated.

#### RIGHTS OF EXPRESSION

The school recognizes the right of students to express themselves within the Code of Conduct guidelines. With the right of expression comes the responsibility to do so appropriately. Students may distribute or display, at appropriate times, non-sponsored, non-commercial written material, and petitions; buttons, badges, or other insignia; clothing, insignia, and banners; and audio and video materials. All items must meet the following school guidelines:

- A. Material cannot be displayed if it:
  - 1. is obscene, libelous, indecent, or vulgar,
  - 2. advertises any product or service not permitted to minors by law,
  - 3. intends to be insulting or harassing, or
  - 4. intends to incite fighting or presents a likelihood of disrupting school or a school event.
- B. Material may not be displayed or distributed during class periods or between classes. Permission may be granted for display or distribution during lunch periods and after school in designated locations, as long as exits are not blocked and there is proper access to the building.

Students must present materials to be displayed to the building administrator twenty-four (24) hours prior to display.

### **CODE OF STUDENT CONDUCT**

The items in this Code are applicable to misconduct by a student that occurs on property owned or controlled by the District and off of property owned or controlled by the District but that is connected to activities or incidents that have occurred on property owned or controlled by the District and misconduct by a student that, regardless of where it occurs, is directed at a District official or employee or the property of such official or employee and all students when properly under the authority of school personnel during a school activity, function, or event whether on property owned, rented, or maintained by the Board of Education or property owned, rented, or maintained by another party. Additionally, the provisions of this Code will apply to students if the prohibited act(s) takes place while on properties immediately adjacent to school property, within the line of sight of school property, on school transportation, or if the act affects the operation of the schools.

This Code will also be inclusive for the right to exercise authority and for personal and property protection of administrators, teachers, librarians, or clerks, substitute teachers, teacher aides, monitors, authorized volunteers, tutors, secretaries, cooks, custodians, bus drivers, visitors, or other authorized school personnel.

Each of the behaviors and/or types of misconduct described below are prohibited and may be subject to student disciplinary action including, but not limited to, student conference, parent/guardian notification, parent/guardian conference, community service, detention, in-school discipline, suspension and/or expulsion from school. Furthermore, any criminal acts committed at or related to the School will be reported to law enforcement officials as well as disciplined at school. Certain criminal acts may result in permanent exclusion from school.

Use, possession, concealment, transmitting, or being under the influence of ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, or LOW ALCOHOL BEER, that
being a brewed or fermented malt product containing either no alcohol or not more than 0.5% of alcohol by volume. Being under the
influence of ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES OR MIND-ALTERING SUBSTANCES while on school property; (including buses) or at any school
sponsored activities.

- 2. ARSON or attempted arson, and related offenses.
- 3. ASSAULT, ASSAULT AND BATTERY, or threat thereof to any school personnel, other student, or visitor.
- 4. Any other form of BEHAVIOR which is detrimental to a proper school and/or school activity atmosphere as prescribed by the Administration and as outlined in the student/parent handbook for the building in which the student is enrolled.
- 5 CHEATING
- COLLUSION, COMPLICITY, OR AIDING AND ABETTING anyone in the commission of conduct prohibited by Board policy, or state or federal law.
- 7. Any attempts to engage in CONDUCT prohibited by this policy.
- 8. DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION, DEFACEMENT OR VANDALISM of school property or private property on school premises (including buses).
- 9. Open DISPLAYS OF AFFECTION between members of the same or opposite sex.
- 10. DISRESPECT to any individual.
- 11. DISRUPTION OF SCHOOL by use of violence, force, coercion, threat, harassment, noise, or disorderly conduct. This includes the use of the aforementioned to incite others toward acts of disruption.
- 12. Violation of school policies pertaining to DRESS AND APPEARANCE.
- 13. DRIVING in an unsafe manner.
- 14. Violation of school building policy regarding the usage of personal ELECTRONIC DEVICES.
- 15. The act of EXTORTION from any person on school property or at any school-sponsored activity (including buses).
- 16. FALSE ALARMS including fire and/or bomb threats.
- 17. The act of FALSELY REPORTING INCIDENTS, making accusations, or giving testimony to school personnel.
- 18. FALSIFYING in writing the name of another person, times, dates, grades, addresses, or other data on school forms or correspondence directed to the school.
- 19. Violation of FEDERAL OR STATE STATUTES on school premises or involving school activities.
- 20. FIGHTING, hitting, pushing, kicking, biting, slapping, tripping, scratching, and/or poking among two or more students on school property or at any school sponsored activity (including buses). This includes inciting and/or encouraging others to fight.
- 21. Possession of a FIREARM: Firearm has the same meaning as provided pursuant to the "Gun-Free Schools Act of 1994." At the time this policy was adopted, the above-referenced statute defined a firearm as any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive; including the frame or receiver of any such weapon; and any firearm muffler or silencer; or any destructive device. A firearm does not include: an antique firearm; a rifle that the owner intends to use solely for sporting and recreational or cultural purposes; any device that is neither designed or redesigned for use as a weapon; any device, although originally designed as a weapon, redesigned as a signaling, pyrotechnic, line throwing, safety or like device, surplus ordnance, sold, loaned, or given by the Secretary of the Army or Class C common fireworks. If the definition of a firearm as Field Local School District Board of Education 6.19 Policy Manual page 4 Chapter VI Pupil Personnel provided by the "Gun Free Schools Act of 1994" changes, then the definition set forth in this policy will automatically change to conform to it.
- 22. Possession, use or threatened use of FIREWORKS, EXPLOSIVES, OR OTHER SUCH INSTRUMENTS capable of inflicting bodily injury or disrupting the operation of the schools.
- 23. GAMBLING for money or valuables on school property (including buses) or at any school sponsored activity.
- 24. The Superintendent may prohibit a student from attending and/or participating in the District's GRADUATION CEREMONIES as part of a student's suspension, expulsion, or removal from school.
- 25. HAZING AND INTIMIDATION, subjecting other students to pranks or humiliation, causing mental or physical harm.
- 26. Commission of an IMMORAL ACT.
- 27. INSUBORDINATION AND/OR DISOBEDIENCE in refusing to comply with directions of school personnel.
- 28. Violation of policies governing INTERNET USAGE.
- 29. LEAVING SCHOOL PROPERTY or assigned area prior to specified dismissal time without official permission.
- 30. LOITERING, LITTERING, OR CAUSING A DISTURBANCE on public or private property adjacent to, across from, or in close proximity to a school site, while either coming to and from school or school activities, or during the school day, or during school activities.
- 31. Persistent, willful MISCONDUCT. Violation of a reasonable and uniformly enforced rule or policy. Intentionally doing that which should not be done or intentionally failing to do that which should be done.
- 32. MISUSE OF SCHOOL PROPERTY.
- 33. Use, possession, concealment, buying, selling, transmitting, or being under the influence of any NARCOTIC DRUG OR OTHER CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE, including, but not limited to marijuana, as well as any counterfeit or "look alike" controlled substance or any prescription drug or medication which is not in its original container and prescribed for the student. Field Local School District Board of Education 6.19 Policy Manual page 2 Chapter VI Pupil Personnel
- 34. Failure to PAY TUITION or other approved charges.

- 35. PLAGIARISM.
- 36. Use of PROFANE, INDECENT, OR OBSCENE LANGUAGE, written or verbal, directed toward school personnel or students. This will include the use of obscene gestures, pictures, or signs.
- 37. POSSESSION OF A KNIFE: Knife, for the purposes of this policy, is defined as a cutting instrument consisting of a sharp blade or edge.
- 38. Those acts or violations listed in the PERMANENT EXCLUSION PORTION OF THE BOARD POLICY ON STUDENT DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES.
- 39. REPEATED OFFENSES OR FLAGRANT VIOLATIONS of any school rules or accepted standards of school behavior.
- 40. REPEATED TARDINESS to class or school.
- 41. VIOLATION OF TERMS OF SUSPENSION, EXPULSION, OR OTHER FORMS OF DISCIPLINE.
- 42. Violation of STATE STUDENT MANDATES, including, but not limited to, required immunization.
- 43. THEFT of school property or equipment, of personal property of any school personnel, or of another student or visitor, including property at school sponsored activities.
- 44. Unauthorized THROWING OF ANY OBJECT including, but not limited to, snowballs.
- 45. TOBACCO/NICOTINE: A student will not possess, use, transmit, or conceal any tobacco product, any alternative nicotine product or device, including electronic, vapor, or other substitute forms of cigarettes, or any tobacco or nicotine cessation product on school premises, during school activities, or events off school grounds.
- 46. TRESPASSING OR LOITERING.
- 47. TRUANCY from school: including study hall, class, or any other assigned activity for class, or any other assigned activity for part or all of a day, without school authorization.
- 48. Possession, use, or threatened use of WEAPONS, or any object which might be considered a dangerous weapon or instrument of violence, including counterfeit or look-alike weapons.
- 49. Violation of any Executive Orders or laws, or policies, rules, regulations, or directives concerning social distancing, hand washing, wearing of masks, or other health and safety protocols generated by the District in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

## SECTION X: WRITING GUIDELINES

### **MLA STANDARDS**

The English Department uses MLA standards for page formatting, research practices and standards for documentation. Students may consult The MLA Style Center at https://style.mla.org/ or Purdue OWL: MLA Formatting and Style Guide at https://owl.english.purdue.edu/owl/resource/747/01/.

# **PLAGIARISM**

When using outside sources in your writing, parenthetical documentation and the Works Cited page are required. Using information obtained from a source without citing the source or turning in as your own a paper or part of a paper accessed through the Internet, or any other source is plagiarism. Using a paper previously written for another course is also plagiarism. Plagiarism is theft and is illegal. Students caught plagiarizing may receive a zero on the assignment and additional disciplinary consequences. Continued acts of plagiarism could result in failure of the course.

As new technologies continue to emerge at a rapid pace, Field Local Schools retain the authority to enforce rules that preserve academic integrity. These measures serve to create an environment that embraces innovation while safeguarding fairness, trust, and the pursuit of knowledge. By striking a delicate balance between technological advancements and educational integrity, schools prepare students to navigate the ever-changing landscape and thrive in the digital era.

Note: Be advised that the following forms can be found on the school website at <u>www.fieldlocalschools.org</u> under Board of Education - Board Policies - Chapter 9 or in the school offices.

- Title IX Grievance Form Notice of Nondiscrimination and Grievance Procedures for Title II, Title VI, Title VII, Title IX, Section 504, and ADA
- Authorization for Prescription Medication Administered at School
- Authorization for Non-prescription Medication Administered at School
- Authorization for the Possession and Use of Asthma Inhalers
- Parent/Student Acknowledgement of Student Handbook
- Notification to Parents Regarding Student Records
- Notification to Parents on Blood-borne Pathogens

### **FINAL NOTE**

Please take time to review the 2023-2024 version of the Field Local Schools Handbook. When you have thoroughly reviewed the policies and contents within and agree to abide by these policies and contents, please indicate you have done so by signing the acknowledgment page on FinalForms.

We are so pleased to have your family as a part of our Field Local Schools family! This handbook is just one of many opportunities for communication between the school system and families. There are many options for parents and guardians to become involved in your child's education. You are encouraged to contact your school's administration and faculty whenever you have questions, comments, or concerns. We are here for you! Best wishes for a great school year!